
* GVR encourages members to voice concerns and comments in a professional, business-like, and respectful manner. 

 
 

AGENDA 
 

BOARD OF DIRECTORS SPECIAL MEETING 
Wednesday, March 20, 2024 – 2pm 

West Center Auditorium / Zoom 
*Code of Conduct 

 
Directors:  Marge Garneau (President), Carol Crothers (Vice President), Bart Hillyer (Secretary), 
Jim Carden (Treasurer), Barbara Blake (Assistant Secretary), Joe Magliola (Assistant Treasurer), Nancy 
Austin, Kathi Bachelor, Beth Dingman, Steve Gilbert, Bev Lawless, Richard Sutherland, Scott Somers  
(non-voting) 
 
AGENDA TOPIC 
 

1. Call to Order / Roll Call – Establish Quorum  
 
2. Amend/Adopt Agenda  

  
3. Presentation 

A. Del Sol Clubhouse Café Power Point and Business Plan (Johnson) 
 
4. Action Items  

A. Resolve the Tie Vote from the 2024 Election (Somers) 

B. Accept the FAC recommendation to accept the Subcommittee’s Del Sol Café Report.  
C. Release the $50,000 in the 2024 Capital Budget earmarked for café startup costs to be spent by 

staff at their discretion based on whether or not we have a vendor for the proposed cafe/gathering 
spot at the Del Sol Clubhouse. 

D. Approve the FAC recommendation to amend the CPM to allow non-member patrons access to the 
proposed café for a nominal daily fee of $1.00.  

E. Approve the FAC recommendation to amend the CPM to allow pets on the patio of the clubhouse.  
 

 
5. Member Comments - Regarding Consent Agenda and/or Non-Agenda Items. Speakers are asked to provide their name and GVR 

member number. Please limit comments to two (2) minutes. 

 
6. Adjournment  

 

 

  



Green Valley Recreation, Inc. 

Board of Directors Special Meeting 

Resolve Tie Vote from Elections 
Prepared By: Nanci Moyo, Admin. Sup. Meeting Date: March 20, 2024 

Presented By: Scott Somers, CEO Consent Agenda: No 

Originating Committee / Department: 
Administration 

Action Requested: 
Approve to resolve the tie vote for 3rd place in the 2024 election by seating both candidates. 

Strategic Plan Goal: 
GOAL 5: Provide sound, effective governance and leadership for the corporation 
 

Background Justification: 
The proposed bylaw amendment to decrease the number of Directors from 12 to 9 passed. 
There was an unusual circumstance of a tied vote for third place between Candy English and 
Bart Hillyer. Options were presented to the candidates to determine the outcome of the 
election, such as flipping a coin or conducting a runoff election. However, both candidates 
expressed their interest in being seated with the understanding that if and when a member 
of the Board resigns during this next governance year, the vacated position would not be 
filled. Staff expressed concern since the notations on the ballot very clearly say that if the 
bylaws amendment to change the number of directors from 12-9 passes, then the top three 
candidates will be seated. However, I agreed to discuss this option with the attorney. The 
attorney agreed that the tie is unique and extraordinary and therefore the Board could vote 
to seat the top four candidates, with the understanding that the intent of decreasing to 9 
Board members from 12 remains the goal, and remains consistent with the language 
approved by the members, since a timeline and plan for implementation were not included 
in the actual bylaw amendment language. Their second choice was to pursue a runoff 
election. 
 

Fiscal Impact: 
Option 1 - none 
Option 2 – Roughly $30,000  
 

Board Options: 
1) Approve to resolve the tie vote for 3rd place in the 2024 election by seating both 

candidates, with the understanding that if and when a member of the Board resigns 
during this next governance year, the vacated position would not be filled. 

2) Approve to have a run-off election and set a date for the run-off election. 
 

Staff Recommendation: 
Option #1 

Recommended Motion: 
I move to resolve the tie vote for 3rd place in the 2024 election by seating both candidates 
(Bart Hillyer and Candy English) with the understanding that if and when a member of the 
Board resigns during this next governance year, the vacated position would not be filled. 



Attachments: 
2024 Ballot 

 



 

2024 BALLOT 
 

A GVR Member in good standing is entitled to cast one (1) ballot for each GVR 
Property owned. 

 
Click HERE for 2024 Election Documents and Information 

 

1. Election of Directors 
 

 

 

 
PLEASE NOTE: 

Only the top three candidates will be seated if the bylaw 
amendment passes to decrease the number of Directors 

from twelve to nine.  
(See Question #2 on 2024 Proposed Bylaws Amendments) 

 
 

Dave Barker Bart Hillyer 

Carol Crothers Dale Howard 

Candy English Nellie Johnson 

Richard Sutherland Steve Gilbert 



2. 2024 Proposed Bylaws Amendments 
(based on March 25, 2020 bylaws) 

 
The GVR bylaws serve as the contractual agreement between GVR and its members. The 
bylaws have served GVR well. Due to legal and circumstantial changes, the GVR Board and 
Administration have proposed and endorsed specific modifications to the bylaws and seek 
member approval. These modifications are designed to achieve three key objectives: 1) Ensure 
compliance with the current Arizona laws; 2) Optimize the efficiency of administrative staff 
operations; and 3) Improve the effectiveness of Board activities, ultimately enhancing GVR’s 
overall functionality. Changing the bylaws requires a 2/3 majority vote from the members. 

 
Please note: Changes to the current bylaws are reflected in the Proposed Bylaws 

Amendments in bold print, underlined, and italicized. 
 

QUESTION #1 VOTING RIGHTS                FOR                   AGAINST   
 
Rationale: (A) allow and retain one (only 1) vote per household, (C) include online voting, and 
(F) limits Board service to one member per GVR household, consistent with voting rights. 
 
ARTICLE II - MEMBERSHIP PROPERTY AND MEMBERS 
Section 6: Voting Rights, A., C., and add F.  
 

CURRENTLY READS:  
A. A GVR Member in good standing is entitled to one (1) vote for each GVR Property owned; 
provided, however, that there shall be only one (1) vote per GVR Property. If any GVR 
Member casts a vote representing a certain GVR Property, it will thereafter be conclusively 
presumed for all purposes that such individual was acting with the authority and consent of 
all other owners of the same GVR Property. In the event that more than one (1) vote is cast 
for a particular GVR Property, none of the votes shall be counted and all of the votes for 
such GVR Property shall be deemed void. 
  

PROPOSED: 
A. A GVR Member in good standing is entitled to one (1) vote for each GVR Property owned; 
provided, however, that there shall be only one (1) vote per GVR Property. If any GVR 
Member casts a vote representing a certain GVR Property, it will thereafter be conclusively 
presumed for all purposes that such individual was acting with the authority and consent of 
all other owners of the same GVR Property. In the event that more than one (1) vote is cast 
for a particular GVR Property, only the first vote cast, shall be counted. 
 

And 
 

CURRENTLY READS: 
C. All voting by GVR Members shall be by written ballot. 
 

PROPOSED: 
C. All voting by GVR Members shall be by written ballot or electronic voting, consistent 
with Arizona Nonprofit Corporation Act. See Article XI. No proxies are permitted. 
 

And 
 

PROPOSED: ADD F 
F. A GVR Member in good standing has the right to serve on the Board of Directors 
provided no other member of the household (whether related by marriage, 
cohabitation, or otherwise) is on the Board during the same time period. 
 

 
 



 
 
QUESTION #2 NUMBER OF DIRECTORS       FOR                AGAINST   
 

Rationale: (Article IV and V) To be consistent with “best practice” recommendations of most 
professional researchers/consultants of nonprofit Boards, and to minimize the tied vote. The 
proposed implementation procedure would gradually move GVR from twelve to nine Directors 
over no more than three years starting in 2024.” 
 
ARTICLE IV - BOARD OF DIRECTORS 
Section 1: Number of Directors  
  
CURRENTLY READS:  

The affairs of GVR shall be governed by a Board of Directors consisting of twelve (12) voting 
members who shall be elected from the members of The Corporation residing within the 
jurisdiction of GVR. 

 
PROPOSED:  

The affairs of GVR shall be governed by a Board of Directors consisting of nine (9) voting 
members who shall be elected from the members of The Corporation who have voting 
rights as defined in Article II - Section 6.  

 
AND 
 
ARTICLE V - ELECTION OF DIRECTORS 
Section 1: Term of Office 
 

CURRENTLY READS: 
A. The term of office of a Director elected by the membership shall be for three (3) years. 

Each year the term of office of four (4) Directors shall expire and four (4) Directors shall 
be elected for a term of three (3) years to succeed those Directors whose terms expire. 
No Director may serve more than two (2) consecutive terms including time served as an 
appointed Director. A former Director may be re-elected after one (1) or more years’ 
absence from the Board. 

 
PROPOSED: 

A. The term of office of a Director elected by the membership shall be for three (3) years. 
Each year the term of office of three (3) Directors shall expire and three (3) Directors 
shall be elected for a term of three (3) years to succeed those Directors whose terms 
expire. No Director may serve more than two (2) consecutive terms including time 
served as an appointed Director. A former Director may be re-elected after one (1) or 
more years’ absence from the Board. 

 
 
  



 
 
 
QUESTION #3 LIMITS OF AUTHORITY   FOR       AGAINST  
 
Rationale: (Article VI) Clarify current wording by being specific in accounting terms and project 
types without changing the spirit of reasonable limits to fiscal authority: 1) Focus on new 
capital projects; 2) Provide a well-defined baseline (latest audited approved annual net revenue 
– does not include investments); and 3) Set the limit at twelve percent (12%) based on using 
last year’s revenue excluding investments. 
 
ARTICLE VI - POWERS, DUTIES, AND RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS 
Section 2: Limits of Authority and Indebtedness 
 
CURRENTLY READS:  

The Board of Directors is not authorized to enter into any contract that requires an annual 
payment that exceeds ten percent (10%) of the annual budget. Any contract requiring an 
annual payment that exceeds ten percent (10%) of the annual budget shall only be valid if 
approved, in advance, by the affirmative vote of regular members representing a majority of 
the total votes cast, provided that the total number of votes cast equals at least twenty 
percent (20%) of the total votes in The Corporation. 
 

PROPOSED:  
The Board of Directors is not authorized to enter into any contract for new or initiative-
type capital projects that exceeds twelve percent (12%) of the latest audited 
approved annual net revenue (does not include investments). Any contract for new 
or initiative-type capital projects that exceeds this figure, shall only be valid if 
approved, in advance, by the affirmative vote of regular members representing a majority of 
the total votes cast, provided that the total number of votes cast equals at least twenty 
percent (20%) of the total votes in The Corporation. Contracts for unique projects may 
not be broken up so as to avoid the requirements of this section. 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 
 
 

QUESTION #4 VOTING METHODS              FOR           AGAINST  
 
Rationale: (Article XI) Combines two sections and clarifies that electronic and written balloting 
is permitted by Arizona law.  
 
ARTICLE XI - MEMBERSHIP VOTING 
Section 1: Voting at a Meeting  
Section 2: Alternative Voting Methods (Section 1 and 2 Combined in Proposed) 
 
CURRENTLY READS: 

Section 1: Voting at a Meeting 
The election of Directors, the amendment of bylaws and any matter that requires approval 
of the members shall be taken by written ballot. 
 
Section 2: Alternative Voting Methods 
Any action, including proposed amendments to these bylaws or the election of Directors, 
which can be properly taken by the members of GVR at an Annual or Special Meeting of said 
members, may be taken by written ballot communicated to every GVR member entitled to 
vote by either mail, facsimile, Email, or other written form of communication as the Board of 
Directors shall determine from time to time with the same force and effect as though acted 
upon at an Annual or Special Meeting. 
 

PROPOSED:   
The election of Directors, the amendment of bylaws and any matter that requires approval 
of the members, and any action, including proposed amendments to these bylaws or the 
election of Directors,  which can be taken by the members of GVR at an Annual or Special 
Meeting of said members, shall be taken by written ballot communicated to and received 
from every GVR Member entitled to vote by either mail, email, or other written form of 
communication as the Board of Directors shall determine from time to time, including 
online electronic voting, with the same force and effect as though acted upon at an 
Annual or Special Meeting. 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 
 
 

QUESTION #5 AVAILABILITY OF RECORDS     FOR     AGAINST  
 
Rationale: (Article XII) To clarify and conform to Arizona law, the granting of access to GVR 
records by qualified GVR Members and provide reasonable notice to the administrative staff.   
 
ARTICLE XII - MISCELLANEOUS 
Section 2: Availability of Records 
 
CURRENTLY READS:  

The books, records and papers of The Corporation shall, for specific and proper purpose, at 
all reasonable times during business hours be subject to examination by any regular 
member of The Corporation upon written demand to The Corporation. 
 

PROPOSED:  
The books, records and papers of The Corporation shall, for specific and proper purpose, 
and consistent with the applicable provisions of the Arizona Nonprofit Act, at all 
reasonable times during business hours be subject to examination by any GVR Member or 
any Assigned Member that has been given voting rights, of The Corporation upon 
written demand to The Corporation at least five (5) business days before the 
requested examination date. 
 

 
 
 
 

3. Approve GVR 2023 Annual Meeting Minutes 
 

Yes No 
 
 

Approval of meeting minutes requires the affirmative vote of a majority of members voting 
on the matter. 

 
 



Del Sol Clubhouse  Business Plan for the Del Sol Café

Report to the GVR Board  

March 20,  2024

1



Major Events since last GVR Board 
meeting  of February 28thh

• Presented to Fiscal Affairs Committee (FAC) on January 16th and the GVR Board 
Work Session on January 17th

• Received the results of the Market Survey on January 31st and tabulated results 
• Subcommittee met on Feb 5th and finalized its recommendations/and report; 
• Business plan report as updated and released to GVR Board Chair, Jim Carden 

and Scott Somers on February 9th. 
• Fiscal Affairs met on February 20th and moved 4 separate  recommendations. 
• GVR Board moved the Business Plan agenda item to the FAC Committee Report 

and it was part of the Committee report. Therefore, it would be clearer to clarify 
the acceptance of the report as a board motion. The other 3 motions were not 
dealt with.

• BAC recognized at its March 13th that BAC is not required to see and 
recommend all CPM  changes.  Board should take some action on this time. 

2



Del Sol Clubhouse Café Business Plan 
I. Components of Plan 
Executive Summary 
Part 1: Past GVR Market Research and Studies Support a Café
Part II. Café Business Description
Part III. Market Analysis 
Part IV. Organizational Structure
Part V. Products and Services
Part VI. Market and Sales Strategy
Part VII. Summary of Market Survey
Summary of Recommendations

II. Location of Business Plan 
a. Report can be found on GVR website : Governance: Fiscal Affairs February 20th

b. Or GVR Board February 28th meeting  

c. Or if accepted as a Report at the March 20th meeting then it  would be posted as a separate report 
on the website 

3



Key Highlights from new Section 1 of the Business Plan
Research GVR Ad hoc Committee

• Steve Wilhelm, Chair, of Ad Hoc  
Committee, presented  the  Cy 2018   
Ad Hoc  committee findings; and 
emphasized the benefits of a social 
gathering place that included a multi-
purpose room/ and a café as an anchor 

• Dr. Ray’s Oldenburg’s developed the 
concept of a Great Good Place (GGP) 
that concluded” Great Good places 
offer a neutral, accessible environment 
like cafés, parks, and libraries. These 
places play a crucial role in fostering a 
sense of belonging and social cohesion 
within a community 

• In mid-January 2024 Steve Wilhelm 
sent a letter of support of the 
Subcommittee’s Business to the GVR 
Board 

GVR Highlights 
• In Cy 2016 , as part of the market research 

conducted in the development  GVR Strategic 
plan, GVR members expressed a desire for a café 
in conjunction with a comfortable space available 
for drop-in socialization and a gathering place for 
friends and neighbors. 

• In the Cy 2018 GVR Member Survey, 74% who 
responded identified the need for a social and 
community gathering space. 

• In Cy 2022 as part of the GVR five-year strategic 
plan, Goal #1 of GVR provides excellent facilities 
for members to participate in a variety of active 
and social opportunities. Under this Goal, 
Initiative 1.4 identified the need to 
expand/repurpose facilities to promote and 
encourage social gathering including the 
exploration of opening a coffee shop. 

• On November 16, 2022, GVR adopted a motion: 
to continue moving forward with a vision of 
creating a social gathering recreation center… and 
by seeking a solution to provide a wide variety of 
food and beverage options (such as a vendor) 

• During budget deliberations, FAC recommended 
approval of funds for the café and established a 
Subcommittee to develop a business plan. In 
November 2023 the GVR Board left these funds in 
the budget but stated their release was 
contingent on additional research. 

4



Prior Strategic plans and Ad Hoc Committees Identified the need for a 
social gathering place /café since 2015 (Part 1 of Business Plan)

Cy 2015 Strategic Master Plan Report   

Pg 5 of the Executive 
Summary; “During the 
Community Outreach 

process, a recurring theme 
was Members’ request for 

a cafe, smoothie bar or 
similar space that fosters 
spontaneous community 

gathering. However, 
operating a  GVR café or 

cafe would finally provide 
members with, a 

comfortable available 
space to gather with 

friends

Pg 9 included a 
survey on page 9 

of other retirement 
communities 

across the country 
that had cafes  

Key Points from Steve Wilhelm’s Cy 2018 Ad 
Hoc Committee
• Members completed a field 

survey of area cafes  and 
compilation of data 

• Findings included
o A Great Good Place (GGP) or social 

gathering place within a GVR 
Clubhouse is a member amenity;

o Social metrics, not financial metrics
o Del Sol Clubhouse with a café is a 

GGP:  it creates a reason to come to 
Clubhouse

o Staffing is critical to form 
relationships with customers; 

• Volunteers can be used to enhance 
the services; doesn’t replace direct 
staff  

• Board and Management absolutely 
committed to success; 

5

Concept of a Café As Part of a Social Gathering Place 



Vision and Goals of Del Sol Clubhouse with Café 
Draft Vision Statement

Green Valley 
Recreation (GVR), by 
its very definition, is 

a Social Organization.  
What better way to 

highlight this fact 
than to encompass 
all aspects of social 
interaction with the 
Del Sol Clubhouse.  
This Clubhouse will 

be offering a 
proposed Billiards 

Room, Game Room 
and now the 

potential inclusion of 
the Del Sol Café 

where members, 
guests and even non-
members can come 
for coffee, food and 
good conversation 
while enjoying the 

views.  

The Del Sol Café is 
but a part of this 
overall plan were 
neighbors, groups 

and clubs can meet 
up to enjoy a good 
cup of coffee, or a 

bowl of hot soup on 
a winters day or sit 
back and relax with 

friends after taking a 
walk through the 

park or down Camino 
Del Sol Road 

This is the 
embodiment of the 
social atmosphere 

that GVR provides to 
all.

Proposed Goals of Del Sol Bistro Café 

• Provide a gathering spot for 
the GVR membership and 
others that offers an updated 
and accessible space for 
member events and activities 
and the ability to commune 
around limited food and 
beverage offerings 

• Develop a greater sense of 
community by establishing 
stronger relationships with the 
GVR members and its club, 
thus helping to sustain the 
cafe operation 

• Provide the café as an amenity 
whose purpose is to provide a 
gathering place, rather than a 
revenue generator for GVR

6



Summary of  Financial Proforma /Options 
Key Variables /model option

• Seating Capacity – 80 seating 
capacity

• Customer time at café: assumed 1 
hr. 15 minutes

• Number of Days Open: 6 days 

• Hours Per day: 8 hours 7 am-3 pm 

• Purchase price per customer: range 
from $5.00 to $6.00 

• Growth is phased in each month

• Staffing model: 
• The role of Café Manager is as 

75% working manager, 25% 
administrative/marketing to 
community/GVR clubs etc

• 2 FTE’s – staff for 3 employees 
during busy cycle (9:00-11:30 ) 

• Cost of Goods Sold:40% of 
customers revenue; based on Sun 
City 

Key Results 

• Break even in month 11 because café 
doesn’t pay rent and utilities 

• Proforma assumes the café 
sustainable at 30% of seating 
capacity or, on average,  154 
customers per day. 

• Assumes café manager oversees Café 
and space after hours;  
o 75% working manager 
o 15%  café administrative 
o 10% after-hours (3pm- 9Pm) 

activity/event coordination with GVR 
Events coordinate/and Clubs 
Coordinator;

• Option is to offer $1.00 coffee/tea 
to all  customers ( could do all day or 
select hours 7-9 am to provide Del 
Sol Café as social gathering place 7



Staffing model based on paid staff not volunteers

GVR Use of Volunteers 

• GVR has 95 arts and 
entertainment 
volunteers, and they 
receive a free ticket; the 
Arts and Entertainment 
supervisor manages these 
volunteers

• Before the advent of the 
key cards, GVR used 
volunteers as fitness and 
pool monitors

• Café would be staffed by 
paid staff; volunteers 
could be used to enhance 
activities but would not 
be used to provide and 
oversee daily café 
operations

Reasons not to use Volunteers to Staff Café

• Volunteers will not provide:
• Reliable maintenance and monitoring of equipment;

• Thorough and reliable clean up of bathrooms, general and kitchen 
areas;

• Consistent greeting and ability to build relationships;

• Screening of non GVR members who need to pay an additional fee;

• A responsible approach to collecting money for food and 
beverages and for how that money might be used and 
accounted.

• It creates an insurance and licensing risk because we are not 
allowed to consistently serve food and beverages without AZ 
licensing. If we do it too much, it may open GVR up to scrutiny 
regarding AZ and IRS sales and UBIT taxes.

• Using volunteers and not employees to provide a daily food 
service puts GVR at risk for violation of and inability to assure 
compliance with safety, fire, and county facility licensing codes 
and requirements.

• Sun City suggested not using volunteers as it creates problems 
amongst the residents; not worth it. 

• Costs would be incurred for training and  monitoring 

8



Other Options 
Vendor Option 
1. Vendor option was not available during 

discussion of the  Subcommittee
2. Pro’s: 

a. Has experience operating a café
b. Less risk for GVR 
c. GVR meets members need for a café as 

identified in surveys

3. Con’s
a. GVR loses control of space while a café
b. More difficult to coordinate as a social 

gathering place 
c. Lose control of offering special pricing 
d. Requires additional coordination with 

GVR to market and coordinate special 
events;  

Other 

1. Volunteers/Coffee pot available; not clear 
about the availability of food

2. Pro’s: 

a. Starts GVR offering some level of 
service at Clubhouse

3. Con’s
a. cost of using volunteers without 

any revenue stream; no social coordinator;  
b. use of volunteers problematic 

due to reasons stated on prior slide 
c. less conducive to social gathering 

place because of consistency of staffing with 
volunteers

d. it requires a license if ANY food is 
sold

9



FAC Subcommittee Report: 

Key Market Survey Results for
the Development of a Del Sol 
Clubhouse Café (full results 
included in Back Up section) 

February 5, 2024

10



Survey Results: Response, Concept, Familiarity

Out of 23,000 potential responses, we received 2230 or roughly 10%
Responses between zip codes were 47% from 85614 and 53% from 

85622
Most respondents, 71%, live here year round
57% indicated they would support a food and beverage offering:

• 23% indicated maybe/unsure
• 19% indicated no
• Less than 1% did not respond

89% indicated they are familiar with the Del Sol Clubhouse and its 
location

• However, only 42% have visited the facility and 58% have not
• 64% have used the Canoa Hills Trails Park

11



Survey Results: Hours of Availability Preferences

12

 Availability (hours of operation):
• Mornings to early afternoon – 47%
• Mornings to early evening – 43%
• Mornings only – 10%



Survey Results: Estimated Use

13

 Estimated usage – most or 71% said they would use the café frequently or 
occasionally:

• 27% said they would use the coffee shop frequently (once or twice a 
week)

• 44% said they would use it occasionally (no more than twice a month)
• 11% said they  would use it infrequently (no more than twice every three 

months)
• 19% left this question blank



Survey Results: Delivery Option

14

 Rankings for preferences on how to deliver food and beverages were:
1. The highest ranked preference, or 35%, was for Café with limited 

beverages and food
2. The second highest preference, or 32%, was for a Café with expanded 

beverages, food and alcohol but not a full restaurant
3. The third preference, or 22%,  was for using food trucks
4. The fourth preference, or 10%, was for vending machines



Survey Results: Non GVR Member Access and 
Allowing Dogs

15

 Most or 59% agree that non GVR members should be allowed to use the Café 
but not the rest of the facility

• 30% said no to this
• 11% did not respond

 Regarding dogs:
• 32% responded they should be allowed on both patios
• Another 32% said they should be allowed on only one patio
• 27% said dogs should not be allowed
• 10% did not respond



Subcommittee Changes to the Corporate Policy Manual 

Pet Policy
• Corporate  Policy Manual to be 

amended to include pets on the 
front patio only  

• Meets the needs of GVR 
members who own pets

• Opens customer base and helps 
to financially support the Café 

Allow non GRV members to use 
the café only 
• Change CPM to allow non GVR 

people to use café only for a 
recommended daily token fee 
of 1.00, similar to Elks Club 

• Other areas in the Clubhouse 
are secure and require guest 
passes, which we propose be 
purchased at the café

• Changing CPM for this GVR 
Center recognizes Del Sol Club 
as a unique entity- a clubhouse

• Café is a business enterprise; 
needs to maximize revenues to 
benefit café and GVR overall 

16



CPM NonMember Language 
2.Guest Policy

A.Guest privileges are intended for temporary visitors of a
Regular Member, Assigned Member, Tenant, CRCF
Resident, or Life Care Member of GVR and who live outside
a twenty (20) mile distance from established GVR
boundaries.

B.GVR Members, Assigned Members, Life Care Members, and
CRCF Residents may purchase one (1) annual guest card
which allows for four (4) adults per visit with unlimited
visits. Annual guest cards are valid through the end of the
calendar year and fees are not prorated. No more than one
(1) annual guest card may be purchased by a GVR Member
regardless of the number of properties owned and may not
be purchased for tenant-occupied properties.

C.GVR Members, Assigned Members, Life Care Members,
CRCF Residents, and Tenants may purchase daily guest
cards which allow for four (4) adults on a specific day.
Exception: Del Sol Clubhouse Café will use a token fee
system for daily use when non-members purchase food or
drink.

•

• Amend the CPM Fee Chart to provide a $1.00 daily 
guest pass for the del Sol Clubhouse Café only 

17



CPM – Pet Friendly Language  
6.Use of GVR Facilities

A.Reservations
1. Reservations will be assigned in the following order:
• Board of Directors
• Recreation Staff (e.g., special events, classes, concerts, 

programs, annual festivals and performances)
• Regularly scheduled club events (weekly and monthly)
• Community events (e.g., HOA) and rentals
• Club one-time special events or parties
• Private member functions
• Club additional ongoing activity requests

• Animals are not permitted in or on GVR property, except service
animals, unless otherwise authorized by the GVR Chief Executive
Officer (CEO) to accommodate community events or other special
circumstances.

• OR: Due to the public or community walking trails, Del Sol Clubhouse will allow
in the front patio seating areas only outdoor seating areas only leashed
animals under the control of their handlers at all times, well-behaved, and do
not create a disturbance or pose a threat to others. If an animal is not under
control or behaves inappropriately, the handler will be asked to remove the
animal from the premises.

18



Recommendation from 
Subcommittee  

Adopt the Subcommittee report which includes the following:
• a. Release of the Cy 2024 funds and positions  included in the budget to 
open a staff-operated cafe in the Del Sol Clubhouse, offering limited food 
and beverages;
• b. Approval of the CPM language change to allow access to NONGVR 
patrons for a nominal fee of $1.00

• 1. Staff raised the issue of capital costs to ensure security to other parts; need keypad at the 
gate going down the stairwell to the lower level; need keypad at the glass doors; 

• c. approval of the CPM language change to allow pets on one of the 
patios. '

• d. Release the $50K for the completion of the kitchen /cafe area and 
purchase of equipment and supplies.

19



FAC Discussion of February 20, 
2024
• It was reported vendor option was a potentially viable 

option and staff needed time to explore it.
• Any vendor option would require a unique contract due 

to the sharing of space and marketing of entity to GVR 
members  

• CPM language  changes were needed regardless of 
whether it was a staff-operated or vendor-operated 
entity

• $50K for capital items, such as electrical, plumbing, 
chairs, patio furniture and major supplies were needed 
to get the space ready for opening as close to the 
overall opening of Del Sol Clubhouse

20



FAC- Action Recommended to the Board  

• Move a motion to accept the Subcommittee’s Del Sol Café 
Report  of February 9th ( Passed FAC unanimously) 

• Move three  separate motions to implement sections of the 
Report that apply to either staff-operated or vendor-operated 
café; 
• Approval of the CPM language change to allow longer patrons 

for a nominal fee of $1.00 (Passed 7-1 vote)
• approval of the CPM language change to allow pets on one of 

the patios. ‘Passed 7-1 vote)

• Move to adopt the Staff’s recommendation for the release 
of $50K for startup (Passed FAC 7-1 Vote)

21



Summary

Del Sol Clubhouse with a café would be a gem of a 
social gathering place that meets the needs of our 
GVR members and would play a crucial role in 
fostering a sense of belonging and social cohesion 
within a community 

22



Back-Up Slides 

23



FAC Subcommittee Report: 

Market Survey Results for
Development of a Del Sol 
Clubhouse Café 

February 5, 2024

24



Objectives of Survey

• Ideally obtain 10% survey response rate which will provide greater 
predictive value

• Obtain the input of the GVR membership to determine if the concept of 
developing a cafe within the Del Sol Clubhouse is directionally correct

• Get a sense of how familiar the membership is with the Del Sol facility
• Obtain input around potential use of a coffee shop, hours of availability, 

food and beverage options, delivery mode, and preferences regarding 
allowing non GVR members and dogs

25



Survey Results: Response, Concept, Familiarity

Out of 23,000 potential responses, we received 2230 or roughly 10%
Responses between zip codes were 47% from 85614 and 53% from 

85622
Most respondents, 71%, live here year round
57% indicated they would support a food and beverage offering:

• 23% indicated maybe/unsure
• 19% indicated no
• Less than 1% did not respond

89% indicated they are familiar with the Del Sol Clubhouse and its 
location

• However, only 42% have visited the facility and 58% have not
• 64% have used the Canoa Hills Trails Park

26



Survey Results: Hours of Availability Preferences

27

 Availability (hours of operation):
• Mornings to early afternoon – 47%
• Mornings to early evening – 43%
• Mornings only – 10%



Survey Results: Food and Beverage Preferences

28

 Beverage preferences:
• Coffee – 19%
• Bottled Water – 13%
• Tea and Soda 12% each
• Wine – 9%
• Beer and fruit drinks - 8% each
• All of the above – 17%

 Food preferences:
• Lunch sandwiches – 15%
• Pastries, breakfast sandwiches, soup and salads – 12% each
• Desserts – 9%
• Quiches – 8%
• All of the above – 21%



Survey Results: Estimated Use

29

 Estimated usage – most or 71% said they would use the café frequently or 
occasionally:

• 27% said they would use the coffee shop frequently (once or twice a 
week)

• 44% said they would use it occasionally (no more than twice a month)
• 11% said they  would use it infrequently (no more than twice every three 

months)
• 19% left this question blank



Survey Results: Delivery Option

30

 Rankings for preferences on how to deliver food and beverages were:
1. The highest ranked preference, or 35%, was for Café with limited 

beverages and food
2. The second highest preference, or 32%, was for a Café with expanded 

beverages, food and alcohol but not a full restaurant
3. The third preference, or 22%,  was for using food trucks
4. The fourth preference, or 10%, was for vending machines



Survey Results: Non GVR Member Access and 
Allowing Dogs

31

 Most or 59% agree that non GVR members should be allowed to use the Café 
but not the rest of the facility

• 30% said no to this
• 11% did not respond

 Regarding dogs:
• 32% responded they should be allowed on both patios
• Another 32% said they should be allowed on only one patio
• 27% said dogs should not be allowed
• 10% did not respond


















































































	Del Sol Clubhouse Cafe.pdf
	Del Sol Clubhouse  Business Plan for the Del Sol Café��Report to the GVR Board  �
	Major Events since last GVR Board meeting  of February 28thh 
	Del Sol Clubhouse Café Business Plan �
	Key Highlights from new Section 1 of the Business Plan
	Prior Strategic plans and Ad Hoc Committees Identified the need for a social gathering place /café since 2015 (Part 1 of Business Plan)�
	Vision and Goals of Del Sol Clubhouse with Café 
	Summary of  Financial Proforma /Options 
	Staffing model based on paid staff not volunteers
	Other Options 
	FAC Subcommittee Report: ��Key Market Survey Results for the Development of a Del Sol Clubhouse Café  (full results included in Back Up section) ��
	Survey Results: Response, Concept, Familiarity
	Survey Results: Hours of Availability Preferences
	Survey Results: Estimated Use
	Survey Results: Delivery Option
	Survey Results: Non GVR Member Access and Allowing Dogs
	Subcommittee Changes to the Corporate Policy Manual 
	CPM NonMember Language 
	CPM – Pet Friendly Language  
	Recommendation from Subcommittee  
	FAC Discussion of February 20, 2024
	FAC- Action Recommended to the Board  
	Summary
	Back-Up Slides 
	FAC Subcommittee Report: ��Market Survey Results for Development of a Del Sol Clubhouse Café  ��
	Objectives of Survey
	Survey Results: Response, Concept, Familiarity
	Survey Results: Hours of Availability Preferences
	Survey Results: Food and Beverage Preferences
	Survey Results: Estimated Use
	Survey Results: Delivery Option
	Survey Results: Non GVR Member Access and Allowing Dogs

	Attachment Del Sol Cafe Business Plan.pdf
	01162024 FAC Minutes DRAFT.pdf
	Fiscal Affairs Committee
	Board Members present: Kathy Bachelor

	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page




